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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE CRIMSUN ORGANICS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s CRIMSUN ORGANICS PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial



statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

‘The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.



e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other al and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

we



On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act
we state that this section is not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 in the Note
No.23(D) on its financial position in its financial statements.

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend, accordingly, compliance under section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,



reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16.08.2023
UDIN: 2351823 1B VR WS 5920

For V K Thapar & Co
Chartered Accountants é’,
Firm Registration No. 11

Partner
M No. 518281



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s CRIMSUN ORGANICS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
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generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.

For V K Thapar & Co &
Chartered Accountants . N
Firm Registration No. 1181y

(SACHCHIDA PvAND_. JHA)
Partner -
M No. 518281

Place: New Delhi

Date: 16.08.2023

UDIN: 2351%2% | By RWS 5920



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

of our report to the Members of M/s. Crimsun Organics Private Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

l.

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b. The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment so as
cover all the assets at reasonable intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain
Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically
verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. Based on our examination of the property lease agreements for lands on which building is
constructed, property tax receipts /registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed
provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of the self-constructed buildings/factory and
title deeds of all other immovable properties, disclosed in the financial statements included
under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date.

d. The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment. and intangible assets
during the year.

e. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) As per the information given, the management has physically verified the stocks periodically
and at the close of the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are, in our
opinion, reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business.

(¢) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and book records which were not material, have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

(d) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. However, the company has not
utilized the fund based limits during the year. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements
filed by the Company with such banks, are majorly in agreement with the books of account of
the Company.



3. The Company has not provided any security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured and also has not made any investments, provided guarantees to companies, limited liability
partnership and other parties during the year.

Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of
the Order are not applicable.

4. The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as
applicable.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

6. In our opinion, the Company has made and maintained the prescribed accounts and records as
required by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148 of the Act.
However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the same with a view to determine
whether these are accurate or complete.

7. Inrespect of statutory dues:

a. In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty
of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. The disputes statutory dues which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2023 on account of
disputes are given below:

Nature Nature  of Period to which
of the | dues ‘Dispute the  Amount
statute | e Pending Relates

Goods Goods and Service The 2017

and Tax (Reversal of | Commissioner

Service GST Credit taken | of GST Central

Tax Act, through  Tran-1) | Excise(Appeal),

2017 along with penalty Coimbatore

8. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43

of 1961).

9. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.
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10.

12.

13.

14.

15,

16.

(b) The Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanation given by the management, the term loan taken
during the year is applied for the purpose for which it was taken.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(e) The Company has no subsidiaries, hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is
not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

. (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported

during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) The company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order not applicable. .

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

The company is not covered under section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c¢) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core

Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

»
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18.

20.

19:

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

The previous statutory auditors have resigned after end of the financial year. We have not came
across any issues, or received any objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company is not covered under provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
hence reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For V K Thapar & Co
Chartered Accountants X:
Firm Registration No. I-ISW

: . = = ):
Partner S :
M No. 518281

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16.08.2023
UDIN: 2351828 |B6VRWS5920



Crimsun Organics Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 311137 2659.04
Capital work in progress B 171.87 174.85
Other Intangible assets 4 183.72 123.96
Right of use assets 23T (i) 208.03 210.25
Intangible assets under development 4 150.93 150,29
Financial assets
i) Other financial asscls S(A) 409.44 43,70
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 475.18 448.00
Other non-current assets jid 23.76 59.94
4734.31 87003
Current assets
Inventorics 8 152.05 1122.23
Financial asscts
i) Trade receivables HA) 24431 166.89
i) Cash and cash equivalents 9%B) 38.46 161.39
iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 9(C) 105.81 391.23
v} Other financial assets (D) 3.50 14.19
Other current assets 10 568,95 619.39
1113.08 247532
Total Assets 584738 634535
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital LHA) 4607.48 3336.05
Instruments entirely equity in nature 11{A) 0.00 400.00
Other equity 11(B) (1347.19) (1096.95)
3260.29 2639.10
Non Current Liahilities
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowing 12(A) 153.30 363.09
Provisions 13 36,33 36,03
189.63 399.12
Current liabilities
Financial lishilities
1) Borrowing 12(A) 616.81 636,97
ii) Trade pavables
a) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 12(B) 9230 68.02
b) Total outstanding due other than Micre and Small Enterprises 12(B) 1729.13 2493.52
iii} Other financial liabilities 12(C) 1891 90.08
Other current liabilities 14 21,00 16.34
Provisions : 13 231 220
2397.46 3307.13
Total equity and liabilities 5847.38 634535
Summary of signifi policies 2
Contingent liabilities and commutments 23
Other notes on accounts 24
The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial stalement,
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For V.K. THAPAR & COMPANY Crimsun Organics Private Limited
Chartered Accountants ==
ICAI Firm Registration No-118IN '/ ]
/ - 4 _
. - ¥ (.;-{\) \,'/—-
T W
SACHCHIDA NAND JHA S Ramesh Prabakaran Anil Kumar Sachdeva Apoorva Choubey
Eartndi- 4 Gl Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No&: 51828F DIN : 05339640 DIN : 01830642 M. No. A59263
Place: Cuddalore Plave: New Delhi

Place: Cuddalore
Date : 16-08-2023

Place : New Delhi
Date : 16-08-2023

Date ; 16-08-2023

Date : 16-08-2023



Crimsun Organics Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts in Rs, in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the vear ended For the vear ended
1 INCOME
Revenue from Operations 15 6.526.96 5.468.73
Other income 16 242,12 49,54
Total Income 6.769.08 5.518.27
11 EXPENSES
Cost of raw material and packing material consumed 17 4.384.01 3.813.58
Tncrease in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and traded goods cost of jobwork 18 16.17 456.40
Employee benefits expense 19 710.50 590.84
Depreciation and amortization expenses 20 340.76 315.78
Finance cost 21 103.65 116.63
Other expenses 22 1.137.66 _1.034.24
Total Expenses __6,692.75 632747
Il Profit before tax (I-1T} 76.33 (809.20)
IV Tax expenses
Current tax 6 - -
Deferred tax (28.92) (171.33)
Total tax expense (28.92) {171.33)
vV Profit for the year (III-IV) ___10525 (637.87)
VI Other comprehensive income :
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
(i) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 24(1) 6.68 1.99
(i) Income tax effect 6 {1.74) (0.52)
Other comprehensive (income)/loss for the vear, net of tax 494 147
VII Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (V+VI) 110.19 (636.40)
VIl Earnings per equity share
(nominal value of share Rs.10)
Basic EPS (Rs.) 28 Rs. 0.25 (1.72)
Diluted EPS (Rs.) Rs. 0.25 {1.55)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Contingent liabilities and commitments 23
Other notes on accounts 24
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For V.K. THAPAR & COMPANY Crimsun Organics Private Limited
Chartered Accountants [:
ICAI Firm Registration No-118IN
- : v 7
e \5\;
: - s
it = L o z/
\.\. f‘ >

Place : New Delhi
Date ; 16-08-2023

Anil Kumar Sachdeva
Director
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Managing Director
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Crimsun Organics Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ¢ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the vear ended

For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

A

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Income tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows |
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Equity on account of corporate guarantee by holding company
Interest expenses
Interest income
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax (Item of OCT)
Operating Profit before working capital changes
Movement in working capital
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in financial liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities and provisions
Cash generated (used in) operations

Income tax paid (net of refunds)
Net Cash flow (used in) Operating Activities (A)

. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Change in investment in deposits with bank (net)
Interest income received
Net Cash flow used in Investing Activities (B)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from share capital issued
Proceeds from long-term borrowings (net)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)
Interest paid

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes :
The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7, "Statement of Cash Flows".

1

2

Components of cash and cash equivalents :-

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
Current accounts
Cash on hand

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even dai.e
For V.K. THAPAR & COMPANY
Chartered Accounta .

i
* /£

13" R
n No-1181N -

76.33 (809.20)
340.76 315.78
0.12 447
11.00 8.00
60.53 116.63
(26.85) (28.49)
6.68 1.99
468.57 (390.82)
970.19 §22.13
(77.42) 640.98
(312.20) (25.02)
(40.21) (3.58)
(823.11) 91.96
(71.17) 49.07
507 11.48
119.73 896.20
20.65 110.43
210.38 1,006.63
(812.23) (592.65)
285.42 (86.82)
26.85 28.49
(499.96) (650.98)
500.00 -
(209.79) (190.08)
(20.16) 44,76
(103.38) (114.03)
166.67 (259.35)
(122.92) 96.31
161.39 65.09
38.47 161.40
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
17.55 90.56
20.92 70.84
38.47 161.40

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Crimsun Organics Private Limited

SACHCHIDA NAND JHA S Ramesh Prabakaran
Partner ' Managing Director
Membership No.: 518281 DIN ; 05339640

Place: Cuddalore

Place : New Delhi
Date : 16-08-2023

Date : 16-08-2023

Anil Kumar Sachdeva
Director
DIN ;: 01830642

Place: Cuddalore
Date : 16-08-2023
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v
Apaorva Choubey

Company Secretary
M. No. A59263

Place: New Delhi
Date : 16-08-2023



Crimsun Organics Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(A} Equity Share Capital

Nos. Amount
33,360,536 3.336.05
33,360,536 3,336.05
12,714,274 1,271.43
46,074,810 4,607.48
(B) Instruments entirely equity in nature
16.50% Non-Cumulative Optionally convertible preference shares (NCOCPS) shares
Particulars Nos. Amount
As at March 31, 2021 4,000,000 400.00
]Issuu of Ereference share capital - -
As at March 31, 2022 4,000,000 400.00
Converted in Equity during the vear (4,000.000) (400.00)
As at March 31, 2023 = -

(B) Other Equity
Particulars Equity on account Reserves and surplus Total of reserve and
of corporate Securities Premium Retained Earnings surplus
guarantee
As at March 31, 2021 16.00 37143 -855.98 -468.55
Total comprehensive income for the year 0.00 .00 -637.87 -637.87
Equity on gecount on corporate guarantee 8.00 0.00 .00 8.00
Other com ive ing 0.00 0.00 147 1.47
As at March 31, 2022 24.00 371.43 -1,492.38 -1,096.95
Total comprehensive income for the year 0.00 0.00 105.25 105.25
Other comprehensive income for the year 0.00 0.00 4.94 4.94
Equity on account on corporate suarantee 11.00 0.00 0.00 11.00
t utili 0.00 -371.43 0.00 -371.43
As at March 31, 2023 35.00 0.00 -1,382.19 -1,347.19

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For V.K. THAPAR & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants c
'd

ICAI Firm Regi No=HBIN - &

v

FPartner NEaN
Membership No.t 518281

Place : New Delhi
Date: 16-08-2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Crimsun Organics Private Limited
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5 Ramesh Prabakar, Anil Kumar Sachdeva

Managing Director
DIN : 05339640

Director
DIN : 01830642
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Date : 16-08-202

Date : 16-08-202
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Apoorva Choubey
Company Secretary
M. No. A59263

Place: New Delhi
Date : 16-08-2023




Crimsun Organics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

1

2.01

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Crimsun Organics Private Limited is a private company domiciled in Tndia and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India. The
company is engaged in the manufacturing and trading, import, export of various agrochemical products (primarily pesticides) and other related products, which are used to
enhance the productivity of agriculture, The Company has its manufacturing facilities and registered office at C-9-11, Sipcot Industrial Complex, Kudikadu, Cuddalore,
Tamil Nadu — 607005.

These financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on Augusyd®., 2023

Summary of significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) standalone financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Basis of preparation of Standalone Financial Statements

The Financial statements are prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard ('Ind AS') as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notifed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) as amended through rules and other relevant
provisions of the Act to the extent applicable. )

These Financial statements were authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on Au,gusl..“. 2023
The fi ial ts are p ted in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (Rs. 00,000), except pet share data and unless stated otherwise.

2.02 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when;

-1t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

-1t is held primarily for purpose of trading

-1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

Al other liabilities are classified as non current.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months

as its operating cycle.

2.03 Property. plant and equipment

Freehold Land is carried at historical cost. All other items of Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
Josses, it any. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. The historical cost comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and
other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of input tax credit
availed wherever applicable. Any trade di and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borfowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

The company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the
asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.

Items of stores and spares that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Otherwise, such items are
classified ag inventories.

Subsequent costs are included in assef’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assels, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equip under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if

appropriate,
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by management. The

useful lifi is as follows:



Crimsun Organics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

2.04

Assets Usef i
Buildings 3
Roads RCC 10
Plant an i 2.4.5.10,15,20 and 25
Computer ries 3
Vehicles-Mator Cycle 10
Vehicles-Motor Car 8
Furniture and fixtures § and 10
Office equipment

L sy

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert. The management, based on its ical ment, has I
the useful lives of certain plant and machinery as 2, 4,5 and 10 years, respectively, which are lower than those indicated in Schedule IT based on nature of underlying asset
and its use, The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the assets. The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
gnized in the stat t of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Lease hold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over shorter of the asset's useful life and their initial agreement period unless the entity expects to use the
asset beyond the lease term.

Tec(

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost of intangible assets acquired in business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are d as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their usetul economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period, Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the
intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment
of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on

a prospective basis.
The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from

previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the
amortization method is changed to reflect the changed pattern.

Payments to third parties that generally take the form of up-front payments in the form of data compensation costs where studies have already approved by authorities in a
country are capitalized since the probability of expected future economic benefits criteria is always considered to be satisfied for separately acquired Intangible Asset

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal,
Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

line basis over their estimated useful life as under

AWMMF

Research and development cost

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as an intangible asset when the Company can
demonstrate all the following:

i) The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

ii) Its intention to complete the asset;

iii) Its ability to use or sale the asset;

iv) How the asset will generate future economic benefits;

v) The availability of adeg T to plete the development and to use or sale the asset; and

vi) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on
straight line basis over the estimated useful life. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.




Crimsun Organics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.05

2.06

(i)

Impairment of non- financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for

an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An assel’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated fufure cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Company operates, or for the market in
which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously
revalued with the revaluation surplus faken to OCL. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding intangible assets having indefinite life, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial Assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income. or through profit or loss)
- Those measured at amortized cost
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for

managing them

Initial recognition and measurement

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
acquisition of the financial assets Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient and
are 1 at the tr tion price determined under Ind AS 115, Refer to the accounting policies in section 'Revenue from contracts with customers',

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are *solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding, This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT with recyeling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

- Fi ial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recyeling of cumulative gains and losses upon d gnition (equity instr )
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss




Crimsun Organics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A *financial asset’ is ed at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) Business Model Test : The objective is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual
maturity to realize its fair value changes) and;
b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on principal amount outstanding.

This category is most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.. The EIR amortization is included in other income in profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FYTOCI) (debt instruments)

A *financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:
a) Business Model Test : The objective of financial instrument is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the Debt instrument give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on principal amount outstanding.

Debt instrument included within the FYTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI), except for the recognition of interest income, impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses which are recognized in
statement of profit and loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or lass,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCIL Dividends on
listed equity invest are recognised in the stat of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the
definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified
as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of
payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCL Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profil or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or ,where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the
Company's statement of financial position) when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a "pass through" arrangement and either;
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transfierred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrang it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transterred control of the
asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.
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(i)

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses( ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial

asset and credit risk exposure
- Financial assets measured at amortized cost;

- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI);

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL). :

The Company follows "simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;
- All lease receivables resulting from the transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 -Leases

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather , it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition, The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected
under the head *other exp ! in the stat 1t of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

(a) Fi ial assets ed as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet, The allowance reduces the net carrying amount, Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount,

(b) Loan itments and fi ial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.c. as a liability.

(c) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVTOCL the expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the
balance sheet, which remains at fair value, Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in
other comprehensive income as the accumulated impairment amount.

Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. All financial labilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade payables. trade deposits, retention money, liabilities towards services, sales incentive
and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of suk financial liabilities are classified in two categories;

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(ii) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also inchudes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instr ts in hedge relationship as defined by Ind AS 109. The separated
embedded derivate are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the t of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
IND AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are
not subsequently transferred to profitand loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. the Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This category is most relevant to the company. Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the Effective interest rate amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by faking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the Effective interest rate. The Effective interest rate amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,
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Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 60 to 180 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using Effective interest rate method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Fi ial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of IND AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilitics simultaneously,

Reclassification of financial assets/ financial liabilities )
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which
are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for
managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infreq The Company’s senior 2 t determines change in the business model as a
result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model oecurs
when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered
into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the Company’s expected purchase, sale or usage
requirements are held at cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective partion of cash flow hedges, which is
recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

(i) Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of 2 recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

(ii) Cash flow hedges when hedging the exp to variability in cash flows that is either atiributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a

highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment
Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Fair value hedges
The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item

attributable o the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge
using the EIR method. EIR amortization may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or foss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a
hedged item, the subsequent « lative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a
corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and loss.
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{ii)} Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised
i liately in the t of profit and loss.

The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other
income or expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial
expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are
transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or ised without repl t or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation us a hedge is
revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI i parately in equity until
the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

Investment in Subsidiaries and joint venture
The investment in subsidiary and Joint venture are carried at cost as per IND AS 27. The Company regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the investee),

determines whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. The Company controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable remrns from
its involvement with the investe¢ and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Thus, the Company controls an investee if and only if it has
all the following:

(a) power over the investee;

(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and

(c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns.

Investments are accounted in accordance with IND AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposal of investment, the difference between its carrying amount
and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss

2.09 Inventories

a)  Basis of valuation:

i) Inventories other than scrap materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing cost of obsolescence, if any, However, materials and other
items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost unless the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to
be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

it) Inventory of scrap materials have been valued at net realizable value.

b)  Method of Valuation:
i) Cost of raw materials has been determined by using first in, first out (FIFO) basis method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those

subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

ii) Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes direct labour and an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads. Fixed production
overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities. Cost is determined on FIFO basis,

iii) Cost of traded goods has been determined by using FIFO basis method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable
from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

iv) Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
sale.

d costs y to make the

2.10 Convertible preference shares

21

a)

—

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract,

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument.
This amount is classified as a fi ial liability ed at amortised cost {net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for conversion
right. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not re-measured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible preference shares/debentures based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

Income Tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in

deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Income Tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax
Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax

Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates and the tax laws that are enacted at the reporting date.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the
company operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The company measures its tax balances either
based on the most Tikely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Current income tax relating to item recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
equity),Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transactions either in OCI or directly in equity.

ot
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided in full using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax liability is not recognised In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be wilised, except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the

extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured al the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity), Deferred tax items aré recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or direct in equity.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilitics and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

2.12 Revenue from contract with customers

The Company manufactures/ trades and sells a range of agrochemical products. Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of these products is recognized at a
point in time when control of the product has been transferred, and there are no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the products which
usually happen on delivery of goods. Delivery occurs when the products are shipped to specific location and control has been transferred to the customers. The Company
has objective evidence that all eriterion for acceptance has been satisfied. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts, volume rebates, Goods and Services tax (GST) and amounts collected on behalf of third parties

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods and there are no
unfulfilled obligations when the property in the goods is transferred for a price, and significant risks and Is have been transferred and no effective ownership control is
retained.

The Company considers, whether there are other promises in the contract in which their are separate performance obligations, to which a portion of the transaction price
needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company allocates a portion of the transaction price to goods bases on its relative
standalone prices and also considers the following:-
(i) Variable consideration
The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of goods measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates. If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a s:gmf‘ icant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
feration is subsequently resolved. The Company operates several sales incentive programmes wherein the customers are eligible for several benefits on
achievement of underlying conditions as prescribed in the scheme programme such as credit notes, tours, reimbursement, investments etc. Revenue from contract
with customer is presented deducting cost of all these schemes.

(iii) Significant Financing Components

In respect of short-term advances from its customers, using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of
consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or
service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be within normal operating cycle.

In respect of long term contracts, the Company has used the incremental borrowing rate to discount the consideration as this is the rate which commensurate with
rate that would be reflected in separate financing arrangement between the Company and its customer.

(b) Contract balances
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. A receivables represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

A trade receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is
dug). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement).

-
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(a) Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value th gh other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and applicable interest rate. Interest income is included in other i in the statement of profit and loss.

2.14 Other Operating Revenues

Export benefit

Revenue from export benefits arising from duty drawback scheme and merchandise export incéntive scheme are recognised on export of goods in accordance with
their respective underlying scheme at fair value of consideration received or receivable. Accordingly, export incentive income is included in the statement of profit
and loss.

2.15 Retirement and other emplovee henefits

(i) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a)

b)

b)

Gratuity
The Employee's Gratity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust with its investments maintained with Life Insurance Corporation. The

liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the
Company contributes to the Gratuity Scheme. The difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balnce of
funds is provided for as assets/ (liability) in the books. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss:

a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

b) Net interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance
Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings th gh other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Provident fund
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. the Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the

provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable through provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related services. If the
contribution payable to scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognized as liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date, then excesses recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund,

Compensated absences
Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit, The company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to

pay as a resull of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an
expense, when an employee renders the related service. Such compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire
leave as a current financial liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
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d)  Other emplovee benefits
The Company provides long term incentive plan to employees via equity settled share based payments as enumerated below:

Employee Stock Option Scheme: The fair value of options granted under this option plan is recognised as an employee benefit expense with corresponding increase
in share based payment (SBP) reserve in equity in accordance with recognition and measurement principles as prescribed in Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments when
grant is made. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At end
of the reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions, It

tecognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with corresponding adjustment to equity,

2.16 Leases

The Company at ot inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for building, The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets. As practical expedient of Ind AS 116 "Leases”, the company has considered Covid-19-related rent concessions not to be lease modification , hence the
income towards rent concession is recognised in "Other Tncome" in the statement of profit and loss account. The Company also applied the other available practical
expedients at the time of initial application,.ci..c k5 el

i) Right-of-use assets (ROU)

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any ement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the building (i.e. 3-5 years)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section Tmpairment of non-financial assets'.

The Company classifies ROU assets as part of Property plant and equipment in Balance Sheet and lease liability in " Financial Liability".

ii) Lease Liabilities

(iii)

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments inchude fixed payments (including in sut e fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasanably certain to be exercised
by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

If & readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease,
then the company use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable, After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assels recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms, Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
i Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.17 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average ber of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average ber of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a
rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) if any that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weig
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

i average ber of shares

2,18 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Borrowing cost also melud hange diffe to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they occur.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with financial institutions, other short -

ferm, highly liquid investments with original matrities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

2.20 Foreign currency translation

)

(it)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The
Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are wranslated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction, Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transaction and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are
generally recognised in the t of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or cxpense in the period in which they arise with the exception of
exchange differences on gain or loss arising on lation of no y items ed at fair value which is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or
profit or loss, respectively).

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 1f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the hability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance
cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or nON-OCCUITENCE of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required lo
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. the
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, conti t assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance shest date.
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a)

b)

Dividend Distributions

The Company recognizes a liability to make the payment of dividend to owners of equity, when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is fio longer at the
discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity,

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction bet market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the pr ption that the tr; ion to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessibl by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 10 measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization ( based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value measurement as a whole ) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these standalone financial statements requires the management to make judgments, use estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgements, assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease ifit is reasonably certain
to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the cc date, the Company r the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

Revenue from contract with customers

Certain contracts of sale includes volume rebates that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration the Company has used a combination of
most likely amount method and expected value method. Further, as the case may be, in respect of long term contracts, the Company has used the incremental borrowing rate
to the discount the consideration as this is the rate which commensurate with rate that would be reflected in separate financing arrangement between the Company and its
customer.
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Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of futute taxable income. Given the wide range of
business relationships differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments
to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various

factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. (Refer Note 7)
Gratuity benefit

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the di rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due

to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the inferest rates of long term government bonds with
extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India.
Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for India. Further details about the assumptions used, including a sensitivity
analysis, are given in Note 27(1).

Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
ed using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but

where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the Company uses judgment in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history ,existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset including intangible assets having indefinite useful life and goodwill may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An assets recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are estimated based on past rend and discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account, If no such fransactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair
value indicators.

Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to caleulate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rales are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
insurance). The provision matrix is initially based on the Company's historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information, At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are

analysed.
The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to ch in gir tances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also

5!

not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Company’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note
27(6)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets represent significant portion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic
depreciation/amortisation is derived after determining an estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The useful life and residual
value of Company's assets are determined by Management at the time asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including at the end of each year. The useful life is based
on historical experience with similar assefs, in anticipation of future events, which may have impact on their life such as change in technology.

Segment reporting policies

Tdentification of segments — Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 1o the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).
Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the operating results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource
allocation and performance measurement.

Segment accounting policies — The Group prepares its segment information in conformity ‘with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting restated
consolidated summaty statement of the Company as a whole.
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Siandards b manlinents jasacs
The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and dments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Apr 2021. The Group has not
early adopted any other standard or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank

offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients:
- A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate,

equivalent to a movement in a market rate of interest

-Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge dos tation without the hedging relationship being discontinued
-Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Group, The Group intends to use the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable

Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by 1CAI

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore, this does not form part of a set of standards pronounced by the standard-setters.
While, the Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter for formulating the standards, it has relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as to develop
consistent accounting policies for areas that are not covered by a standard or where there is choice of accounting policy, and to assist all parties to understand and interpret
the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS .includes amendment of the footnote to the definition of
an equity instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, foomote to be added for definition of liability i.e. definition of liability is not revised on account of revision of
definition in conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets etc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS vide notification dated June 18, 2021, applicable for annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. Accordingly, the Conceptual Framework is applicable for preparers for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021,
These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company

Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28
The definition of “Recoverable amount” is amended such that the words “the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use” are replaced with “higher

1 1

of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use”, The consequential ts are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28,

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.
Standards / Amendments issued but not effective:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends
certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2022. These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the group in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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3. Property, plant and equipment

Buildings REINt Office equipment’s Vehicles Heraitine and Total Crulsalwee: Grand total
machinery fittings in progress

Gross Bloek
(As at March 31, 2021 500,39 2.091.97 26.67 17.32 13.02 2.649.38 163.13 2,812.51
Additions 101.18 357.22 7.11 39.61 4.96 510.07 111.23 621.30
Disposals/Adi t (13.27) (13.27) (99.51) (112.7%
|As at March 31, 2022 601.57 2.449.19 33.78 43.66 17.97 _3.146.18 174.85 3.321.02
Additions 41.95 689.73 13.38 3.34 748.41 100.62 849,03
| Disposals/Adjustment (0.99) (3.13) (4.12) _(103.60) (107.7]
| As at March 31, 2023 643.52 3.138.92 46,18 43.66 18,19 3.890.47 171.87 4,062.34 |
| Depreciation
As at March 31, 2021 17.44 189.12 7.15 3.17 1.10 217.97 - 217.97
Charge for the vear 18.93 238.68 7.24 5.09 233 27227 - 27227
Disposals (3.10) (3.10) - (3.10)
As at March 31, 2022 36.37 427.80 14.38 516 3.43 487.14 - 487.14
Charge for the vear 22.93 254.75 9.15 5.69 1.93 294.45 294.45
Disposals (0.83) (1.65) (2.49)
(As at March 31, 2023 59.30 682.55 22.70 10.85 171 779.10 = 779.10
|Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2022 565,20 2.021.39 __19.40 38.50 14,55 2.659.04 17485 2.833.89
As at March 31, 2023 584.23 2,456.37 23.48 3281 14.48 3,111.37 171.87 3.283.24
Notes

(i) All property plant and equipment (excluding leasehold improvements) are held in the name of the company.

{ii) Refer to note 12 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged/ hypothecated as security.
(iiii) Capital work in progress includes building under construction and machines under installation.

(iv) Disclosure of Contractual commitment for the acquisition of property plant and equipment has been provided in note 23,

et
7 )
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4. Intangible assets

Li Product Total other Intangibles assets | Total intangible
icenses i i Software . 2
Registration intangible assets | under development assets
Gross Block
As at March 31, 2021 16.39 169.92 2.55 188.85 123.94 32.79
Additions - 11.38 - 11.38 26,35 3773
Disposals/ Adjustment - -
As at March 31, 2022 16.39 181.30 2.55 200.23 150.29 350.53
Additions 103.85 103.85 0.63 104.48
Disposals/Adjustment - -
As at March 31, 2023 16.39 285.15 2,58 304.08 150.93 455.01
\ P

As at March 31, 2021 4.10 30.34 0.55 34.99 - 34.99
Charge for the year 4.10 36.65 0.54 41.29 - 41.29
Disposals - - -
Impairment allowance - - -
As at March 31, 2022 8.20 66.99 1.09 76.28 - 76.28
Charge for the year 3.59 39.87 0.63 409 44.09
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 11.78 106.86 1.72 12036 - 120.36

4 t

31,2022 8.19 114,31 146 123.96 150.29 274.25
As at March 31, 2023 4.60 178.29 0.83 183.72 150.93 334.65

Notes:-

(i) Intangible assets under development comprise of costs incurred towards creating product dossiers, fees paid to registration consultants, application fees to the ministries, data compensation costs and data call
same is reduced by the amount which is estimated on past basis where in approvals could not be obtained or product development was shelved voluntarily due to reasons beyond the control of management.

e

-in costs. The carrying value of
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Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2023
Projects in progress 119.92 - - - 119.92
[Projects temporarily suspended - - 128 50.68 51.96
| Total 119.92 - 1.28 30,68 171.87
Pariiculars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears
As at March 31, 2022
Projects in progress 122.89 - - - 122.89
| Projects temporarily suspended - - 2.58 49.38 51.96
| Total 122,89 - 2.58 49.38 174.85 |
Intangible Asset under Development (TAUD) Ageing Schedule
Particulars Amount in IAUD for a period of Total

Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2023
Projects in progress - 40.05 4528 65.59 150.93
[ Total 150.93 |
Particulars Amount in IAUD for s period of Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2022
Projects in progress 37.68 47.79 3434 30.49 150.29
(Projects temporarily suspended -
| Total 150,29 |

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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5 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(A} OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (valued at amorfised cost)
As at As at
March 35, 2023 March 31,2022
{Unsecured, considered gowd)
Security Deposils EEN 2739
Bank deposit under lien 31582 16.31
409.44 43.78
I
& INCOME TAXES
As at As af
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{a) Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:
Defermed Tax {eredit) {27.18) (170.81)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss {27.18) (170.81)
(1) C¥ther Comprehensive lnvvme
Asat Ag ot
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Re-measurement (gains)/ losses on defined benefil plans (L74) {0.52)
Income tax related to items recognized in OCL during the year (1.74) {0.52)
ic) Reconcilintion of tax expense and the g profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate :
As at As at
Muarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Accounting Profit before tax 76.33 (BO9.20)
At India's statutory tax rate of 26.00% (March 31, 2022, 26.00%) 26.00% 26.00%
Computed Tax Expense 19.85 (210.39)
Al an effective income tax pate of 26,08 % (March 31, 2022: 25.57 %) 19.85 (210.39)
*No deferred Lix assels were recognised on the same,
Income lax expense reported in the statement of prafit and loss (2892) {171.33)
(¢} Deferred tux assets/(lHabilities) comprises
As at Asal
Murch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Acuelernted depreciation for tax purposes (96.35) (104.42)
Deferred tax (Hability) (96.35) (104.02)
Expenses allowable on payment basis 10.05 6.17
Unabsorbed depreciation and carmed forwarded tax losses 561.49 54585
Deferred tax asset 57154 552.03
Net deferred tax asset 475,18 448.00
(d) Reconellintion of defurred tax assets/(liubilities) (net)
As at Asut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 448.00 17719
- 1o Profit and Loss Account 18.92 17033
- 1o Other comprehensive income (174} (0.52)
27.18 170.81
Closing balance 475.18 448.00
7 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Agad As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Unsecured. considered zood)
Capital sdvances 1097 59.94
Prepaid expenses. 1279 -
23.76 59.94
¥ INVENTORIES
Az al Ag at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value unless otherwise stated) (refer accounting policy 2.07)
Raw muerial and Packing material 39.08 953.36
Works-in-process manufacturing 216 36.98
Warks-in-process job work 30.06 =
Finished goody 1.55 n
Stones, Spares and Conswimables 59.22 98.92
152.05 1,122.23
_—
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9 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(A} TRADE RECEIVABLES (valued at amortised cost)

Asal Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured
Trade receivables from contract with customers- considered good 0.24 199
Teade receivables from contract with customers - considered good - from refated parties (refer note 24(3)(c2)) 244.07 164.90
Total 244.31 166.89

— Lo
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2023
Less than 6 ;.
Particolars Not Duc Months 6 months — 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Unadi Trade i id wood 166 241.65 - - - - 244.31
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have signi increase - E n £ E z i
i eredit risk
Unelispusted Trade receivable ~ credit impaired - = - = = & n
Disputed Trade receivabics < considered wood - - - - o
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in - - = 7 = B
credit risk )
Disputed Trade reccivabics — credil imoaired - - = 2 = 2 5
Total 2.66 241,65 F E = 24431
Less: Provision fur impairment =
Net Trade Receivables 2,66 241,65 B = = 24431
Asat 31 March 2022
Less than &

Particulars Not Due Months 6 months — 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
T diehia Tr Kacet e oo = 166,89 = > : = 166.89
Undisputed Trade Reveivables — which have significant increase - ¥, - - 5 -
in credit rink .
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impared - - - - - G =
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - # =
Disputed Trade receivables — which have gigni Encrense in - - - = )
credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - = -~ : - .
Total x 106,89 - - 16689
Less: Provision for impalrment %
Net Trade Receivables - 166,89 = = =, 16689

Notes:

a) Trade receivables are usually on trade termes based on credit worthiness of customers as per the terms of contract witl vusiomers. No interest is charged on trade receivable on the due date from the date of invoice.
b) Weither any trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company cither severally ot jointly with any other person, nor sy trade or ofher reoeivable sire due from firms of private companies respectively in which any director is u

paringr, 8 director or 8 member.

©) Information on receivables from related partics is disclosed in Node 24(3)c)

) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are penerally on terms of 0-50 days.

—(B) CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Asat A at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with banks:
ument accounls 17.55 $0.56
Cagh on hand 20.91 T0.83
Total cash and cash equivalents IBAS 161.39
INote: There arc no restrictions with regand 1o eash and cash couivalents as st the end of the reporting penod and prior periods.
(C) OTHER BANK BALANCES
As at Az at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Margin money deposit with banks/financial institution 105.81 39123
165,81 SLIFEN
Note: Margin mioney denosils inchuding scerued interest thereon are subiect to first chanee W secure the companies derm loans and letier of credit and hence the same are disclosed in the other bank balances
D) _OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Unsecured, considered goud)
Security Deposits (st amortised cost) .50 6,65
Drerivative Financial Instrument 701
Uther receivables = 0.53
3.50 14.19
e
Note : Derivative Instruments ot fir vatue through profit or loss reflect the positive change in fiir value of those foreign exchange frward contracts that are not desi {in hedge relationships. bul are, heless, intended to reduce the level of foreign

currency risk for sabes and purchases. The fir value gan is included in the statement of profit and loss.
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10 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Unsecured. considered good)
Advances for material and services 31.76 7.65
Balance with wovernment authorities; 491.20 S41.85
Prepaid cxpenscs 39.99 19.89
S568.95 619.3%
e
11 EOUITY
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{A} Share capltal
a) - Authorized shure capital
5,30,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 5,30,00,000, March 31, 2022: 5,30,00,000) Equity shares orlll II}«-I each 530000 5,300.00
50,00,000 (March 31, 2023 50,00.000, March 31, 2023: 50,00,000) 16.50% N, ible pref
shares (NCOCPS), Rs. 10/~ each 500,00 500,00
5,500.00 00,00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
4,60,74,810 (March 31,2022: 3,33,60,536) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 4.607.48 3.336.05
‘,iw.ds 3.336.05
Imstruments entirely equity in nature
(March 31 2022: 40,00,000 ) Non lative optionally prefi shares . 400.00
(NCOCPS) of Rs.10/-cach
=) 40004
L
b}  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and ¢ the end of the year
_Equity shares
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of shares Rs. in Lakhs No, of shares Rs. in Lakhsy
At the beginning of the year 33.360.536 3.336.08 33.360.536 333605
Isgned during the vear 1.271.43 - -
At the end of the year 46,074,510 4.607.48 33,360,536 3.336.05
Non-C Optionall riible p shares (NCOCPS) shares
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Nu. of shares Ry, in Lakhs No. of shares Rs. in Lakhy
At the beginning of the year 4000000 400.00 4.000.000 400.00
1ssued during the year = g = !
Lessi-  Conversed in Equity during the vear 4,000,000 40000 - -
Al the end of the year - - 4,000,000 400.00
¢} Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par valug of Rs. 10/~ per share (March 31, 2022 Rs 10/~ per share). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company dechares and pays dividends in Indian rupees, The
dividend proposed by the Roard of Directony is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remsining assets of the Company, ufter di afall Tamounts, The distrit will be in prop to the munber of equity shires held by the
sharcholders,
d) Terms of conversion! redemption of 16.50% Non-Cumuolative Optionally convertible preference shares (NCOCPS) shares
The compnay has issued 40,00,000 Non-Cumulative Optionzl| ibl i shares (NCOCPS) of Rs. 10/ each fully paid-up at a Premium of Rs.5 each ageregating lo Bs 6,00,00,000/- during the year March 2021. The NCOCPS shall catrva
dividend (@ 16.50% (on face value) which shall be non-cumilative. The amount subicribed shall be dither red {at Rs 15 per share or converted into | Equity share of Ry 10~ cach at u premium of Rs 5/~ cach at any time at the option of the Compuny
not later than 20 years from the dute ofallotment of the NCOCPS,
The company all the i Non-Cumadative ( I shares (NCOCPS) into Equity share during the this linancial year 2022-23 und s such there is no Mon-Cumulative Op i} ibl B shares
(NCUCPS) remaing outstanding al uw)earul' the year 315t Mm'd! 23 (318t March 22 40,000,000 shares),
The dall th ding Mon-Cumulative Op 1} 1bls shares (NCOUPS) into Equity share during the this financial year 2022-23 and a4 such there is no Mon-Camalative Opti prefe shares
[NC D(,PS} rumans mmk!mgal thio year of the year 315t M«Ml 23 (3181 March 2.2 40,000,000 shares).
®)  Bonus lssue
The Company has issued Bonus shares and allotied 37, 14,274 Bonus equity shares having face valueof Rs, 10 @eh in ralio o 0.099417 to the members on 11-01-2023
N Right Share lssue
The company has issued right equity shares vide its boand resoution dated 10/03/2023 and 22/03/2023 0f 45,17,23% and 4,852,761 Respectively. Accordinlgy, total 50,00,000 equiity shares issued and allotied during the Bnancial year 2022-23
¢} Details of shavebolders holding more than 5% shares in the Companv is set out below | tine legal and b i
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Name of shareholder Ne. of shures %6 holding No. of shares %o holding
Equity Shares of Ry. 10 cuch fully paid
Purijat Inthusicics (India) Private Lid 35992973 THA2% 15,762,083 Tr.22%
16.50% Non-Cumulative Optionally sl shares (NCOCPS)
Parijat Industries (India) anale Lad. - - 3,088,928 17.22%
Note : As per reconds of the company, inchuding its register of fsharcholders and other decl received from shorvholders regarding beneficinl interest, the above sharcholding represenis boih legal and beneficial ownership of shares

d) Disclosure of Sharcholding of Promaters

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Shares held by promoters

Promuter Name As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 % change
No. of shares % of total Shares No. of shares % of total Shares during the !elr
Parijat Industries (India) Private Lid. 35992973 78.12% 25,762,083 77.22%
Mr. Alwar Paranitharan 1,432,192 3% 1,361,770 4.08% -0.9".'%
“ Mr. Ramesh Pakia Bama 684,002 1.48% 489,576 147% 0.01%
Mr. Senthurpandian Rameshprabakaran 601,619 131% 430,610 1.29% 0.02%
Total 38,710,786 84.02% 28,044,039 B4.06% 0.04%
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
‘Shares held by promoters
Promoter Name As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 %o change
No, of shares % of total Shares Nu. of shares % of total Sheres during the year
Parijat Industries {India) Private Lid. 25,762,083 77.22% 25,762,083 77.22% TAT%
Mr. Alwar Paranitharan 1,361,770 A408% 1,361,770 4.08% 0.00%,
Mr. Ramesh Pakra Bama ) 489,576 147% 489,576 L4T% “0.10%
e © ' L L ik AN RN 1 0ec AN AN 1 e AN
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*Parijat Industrics {Indin) Private Limied (Holding Company) Corporate Guarantee given to RBL Bank Limited amounting Rs. Nill (March 31, 2022 : Re 850.00 lakhg). to Axis bank Limited amounti
Capilal Financial Service Limited amounting Rs, 750,00 lakhs [March 31, 2022; Rs 750.00 lakhs) for facilities availed by Crimsun Organics Private Limited" for working capital and term loan firc

Total Corporate Guarantee Given Rs. 2200 Lacs

{C) Nature And Purnese Of Reserves

s in Rs. o Lakhs onless otherwise stated)
2 Al 1
Ny, gl shares Amount Ny, of shares Amount
Parijat Industries (Indin) Private Limited
Eguity shares 35992973 359.929.730 25.762.083 257.620.830
Non-umulative optionall ible preference shares (NCOCPS) = > 3.uesI28 ]
(B) OTHER EQUITY
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Securilies premium = 371.43
Equity on account of corporate zuarantee by holdine company 35.00 24.00
Retained eamings (1.352.19) (1,492.38)
(1.347.19) {1,096.95)
Notes:
a} Security Premium
Opening balance 37143 T4
Less: Amount utihised for Bomus shires (371.43) -
Closing balunce 0.00 37143
b) Retafned Earnings
Upening balance (1,492.38) (855.98)
Met {loss) for the vear 105.25 (637.87)
Items of uther hensive Income pnised directly in ed carnings
R of post empl benefit obli net of tux (ltem of OCI) 4.94 147
Closing balance ETRIIAD] (92381
b} Eawity on account of corporate suarantes by holding company
ing 24.00 16.00
*Equity o account of cornomie suarsntes by holding company 1100 .00
Closing balance 3500 24.00
) Equity Comp of Comy Financial §
Upening balance 400.00 400,00
Less: Convered in Equity Shares (A00.00)
Clusing balance F 400,00

ing Rs. 1450 lakhe (March 31, 2022 : Rs NIL) and Tata
and Holding Company Commission charged 0.50% on

(a) Securities preminm
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shanss is recognised in securitics premium . The reserve can be ulilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shires oF ption of pref; shares in i with the pr
of the Companies Act, 2013
(b) Retained earnings
Retained Eamings are profils that the Company has curied 1ill date less transfr to General Reserve ,dividend or other distrit or L ion with sharehiold
-1z FINANCIAL LIABILITIES.
As at As at
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(A) BORROWINGS {valued at amurtived cost)
Non current
Secured loans
Indiun rupees loan:
Term lpan from financial institution (refer note (i) 150.15 351.66
Vehicle loan from bunks (refer note (i) below) 315 11.43
153,30 363.09
— —
Current
Unsecured loans
Indian runeces lvan:
Loan from related party (refer note {iv) below) IB5.00 38500
Accrued Interest 19.01 38.71
Secured loans
Indiun rupees loan:
Term loan from financial institution {refer note (1) 204.46 20549
Vehicle loan from banks (refer note (i) below) 8.34 mn
Total current borrowings 61681 63697
—

ti)  Term loan from Tata Capital Finuncial Services Limited (‘TCFSLY) has been avuiled a5 per sanction letter dated April 29, 2019, The total ficility amount ks Rs 750,00 Jucs with tenure of 60 months snd ROL ut 10% per annum (LTLR less 7.35%, present
LTLR being 19.25%) subject to minimum of 10% per annum. The loan is used for Capex and general corporite purpose.
The loan is fally secured by way of first and exclusive charge of hypothecation on moveble tangible assels of the company and lien on fixed deposit of Ks 225.00 lacs in favour of TCFS from ICICH Bank and also corporule guaragtee given by holding
company i.e. Parjat Industries (India) Private Limited.

i) Working capiti) term loan {Guaranieed emergency credit line ‘GECLY) fiom Tata Capital Financial Services Limited (TCFSL') ameflnting to Rs 74,66 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs. | 12.00) carries rate of interest 10.50% p.n. spread The Loan is repayable
in unequal monthly instaliments starting from April 05, 2022 over o period of 48 months ending on March 05, 2025.

i) Vehicle loans from HDFC Bank Limited is secured by way of hypothecation of the vehicles. The same is repstywble in 43-60 monthly EMU's, repayment period thereof commencing from Ausust, 2021 ending on May, 2024, with interest at (he rte mnging

from 7.50% to 7.65% per annum
iv)  An agreeinent has been entered with Parijat [ndustries (India} Private Liriled for a finsncial sagistance of unsecured loan bearing interest | 1% per annum (3 st March 2022 11% per annim).

Particulars Burrowings
For the year ended For the year ended
March31,200 __ March31,2022
Opening balance 1.000.06 1,144.38
Cash flow (net) 1272.80) {141.72)
Interest expense 60.53 116.63
interest paid {103.3%) {114.03)
7011 L0006

Closing balance
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(B) TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2822
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises B30 685.02
Total outstandine dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,729.13 2,493.52

1_122.43 2;‘61.54
1,740,100
- 1.67
Trade pavables Agcing Schedule
As at March 31. 2023 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 yeary Muore than 3 yeary Total

Total outstanding dues of micro enterpriscs and small enterprises 235 703 - - b2 9.30
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises 860,99 43417 433.94 026 144 1,730.80
and small enlerorises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises amd small eterprises - - - - = .
Disputed dues of creditors othier than micro enlerprises and small = = w = i

——B6324 4420 433,94 0.26 L46 L740.10
As at March 31. 2022 Ollfﬂm for I'v}hmng periody from due date of payment

Mot Due Less than | year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enerprises 1298 54,93 .10 - - 68.02
Tatal mlhﬂilﬂg.tlﬂ of creditors other than micro enlerpriscs 646.66 1.841.80 199 197 810 249352
and small enteronses

Disputed dues of micro entemrises and small cnferprises = = - - w -
Dispated dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small = - = & = -

— N T LB9RT3 .10 Le7 [IRT 256154
Notes

a)  Trade Payables include due to related parties are disclosed in note 24(3Xc)

b} The amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing are usually paid within 60-180 days of recognition.

€} Trade puyuble inchodes vendors whose payment e secured via Letier of credit as at March 3 1, 2023 amcunting to Rs. 798.60 Lakhe (March 31, 2022 Rs.542 .82 Lakhs),

d)Information as required 1o be furnished a5 per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the respective years is given abave, This information has been determined to the extent such parties have
been identified on the basis of inft i ilable with the Company,

{C) Other current financlal liabilities
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security deposit = =
Creditors for capital goods 16.55 .08
Derivative instrument - foreiin currency forward contract {at fair value through orofit and Toss) (net) 236 -
Employee navable - -
Sules incentive pavable = -
15.91 .08
= ——
13 PROVISIONS
Agat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non Current
Provision for employe benefits
Provigion for Gramity 219 2232
Provision for compensated absences 14.94 13.711
36.33 36.03
Current
Provision for emplovee benefits
Provision for Grautity 0.84 0.53
Provision for compensated absences 1.47 1.37
2.31 2.20
14 OTHER LIABILITIES
Az at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Addvance from Customer 019 -
Statutory dues payable 20.81 16.34
21.00 16.34
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15 REVENUE FROM OPEARTIONS

For the year ended For the year endid
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2012
R’ Trom with
Sale of products 4,472.68 4,654.03
Sale of services 2,024.21 92
6,496 59 5.454.95
Other operating revenues
Sale of scrap 2228 13.78
Ingome on Sale/Purchise of Licamw: 1.79 -
5526.95 5.468.73
e
Notes:
. Revenue for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are net of Goods and Service Tax (GST).
b ggregated revenne i
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from coninit with customers:
Type of Goods or Service For the year ended Fur the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sale of products
Technical 3,131.65 444992
Others 1.341.03 204,11
Total (A} 447268
Sale of services
Job wosk 1.848.71 602.26
Process development/stabalisation income 175.50 19866
Total (B} 2.024.21 #0092
Total revenue from contracts with customers (A+B) 6,496,589 5.454.95
by locution of For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
india 6,496.89 545495
Duiside lndix - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 6.496.89 545495
*Includes High Sea Sales
Revenue by timing of revenue recognition For the year ended For the year ended
Muarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Goods transforred at o point in time 4,472.68 4,654.03
Services transfemred over the time 2,024.21 $00.92
Total revenue from confracts with customers 6,496 89 $454.35
iliation of revenue recognised In of profit and loss with contracted price For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue ss per contracied price 6,496.89 5,456.64
Less: Rebates and Discount/Schemes - 169
Total revenwe from contracls with customers 6,496.89 5454.95
c. Contract balunces
As at A at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade receivables 244.31 166.59
Contract liabilities (refer note 15) 0.19 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 244,30

Contract liabilitics consist of short-term sdvances received from customer (o supply goods against the same.

. Performance obligation
Sule of products: Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods iv satisficd when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Loodd

Sale of services: The performance obligation in respect of job work services is sulisfied over a period of time and seoeptance of the customer. In respect of these services, payment is gencrally due upon completion of services and scceptance of the customer.
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(ANl amounts in Rs. in Lakhy uniess otherwise stated)
16 OTHER INCOME

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost:
Bank deposits 2161 19.91
Others 524 H.58
26.85 28.49
Other Overating Income
Insurance claim received 199.72 -
Other non-operating neome
MTM (uminVloss on financial derivatives - 7.01
Exchangze differences (ne1) 956 14.04
Liabilitics no longer required written back 599 -
Miscellancous incorme (net) 3 5]
Insurace Claim Receivable - =
242,12 49.54
17 COST OF RAW MATERIAL AND PACKING MATERIAL CONSUMED
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Inventories at the beginning of the vear 953.36 1,050.17
Less: Inventories lost due to fire = 24,85
Adid: Purchases 3.469.70 3,741.62
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 39.05 §53.36
Cost of raw material and packing material consumed 4.384.01 351358
18 INCREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS. WORK IN PROGRESS AND TRADED GOODS COST OF JOBWORK
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Lnventories st the bewinning of the vear

Finished eoods e 489.37
_W’ulk-in-pmsmss 36.98 36,98

O —20.35
Inventories at the end of the year
Finighed woods 155 kr o)
Work-in-progress miahulaciuring 2116 36.98
Work-in-progress job work 306 -

53.78 69.95
Change in inventories of finished gowds, work in progress and traded goods {Increuse) _u._l_‘{ m

19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages, borus and other benefits 597.61 43741
Contribution to provident fiind and other funds 327 2780
Grafuity expense 10.76 1881
SiafT wellare expenses TLE6 114,82
'Jm ‘92!4

The Code on Social Security, 2020 {*Code'} relating Lo employvee benefits during employment and post-cmployment benefits roceived Presidentinl assent in Seplember
Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation huve not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it

20 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

2020. The Code hag been published in the Gazette of India, However, the date an which the

comeg into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of tangible ssscts {refer note no. 3) 292.23 7227
Deprecintion of Right of use assets | refer note 23(C) ) 222 222
Amortization of intungible assets (refer note no. 4) 46.31 41.29
34076 ETT
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21 FINANCE COSTS

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expenses
- on borrowings 49,53 108.63
-other Finance charzes 11.00 H.00
- others 43.12 -
21 UTHER EXPENSES
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Congumotion of stores and spanss 28934 33197
Power and fiiel 42589 187.12
Repair and maintenance -
= Plant and machinery 4342 B4.37
= Buildings 835 810
- Orthers 850 46.13
Rent { refer note 23(C) | 17.02 28.64
Travelling and convevance 2497 17.82
Leral and professional fiocs 60.63 102.66
Insursnce 3819 27.26
Job work charges - 9.93
Freieht and forwarding charees 4.08 .91
Product lesting expenses 1715 4.68
Directors' sittin fees 0.30 2.60
Advertising and sales promotion 032 (%1}
Research and Development Expcnscs 1.48 -
Printing and stationery 1.06 525
Communication cosls .08 391
Payment fo waditors (refir details below) 205 205
Rates and taxes 0.34 0.35
Soltware and website expenses 6.38 522
Donations 084 0.7
Bank charges and commission 1148 11,23
Hezrdous waste disposal 952 95.74
Comorste eavironmental resoonsibility 12.67 1314
Loss due to Fire (Refer Note 31) - 6.39
Loss on sale of plant. property and equipment {net) 012 4.47
Miscellaneous expenses 380 17.72
Loss on change in Gir value of derivatives 937 &
1,137.66 1.034.24
Payment to suditors
For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2023 March 3], 2022
As auditors:
Audit fees .00 175
In other capacity
Uther services .05 030
!.ﬁ_ ¥ ﬁ

(This space kas been intentionully left blad)
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23 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A Provident fund
There are numerous interpretative issues relating to Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund (PF) dated February 28, 2019. The company has not made any provision in

the books in the current or previous financial year in the absence of authorities guidance. Further, company will update its provision if any, on receiving further clarity on the
subject.

B  Capital commitments

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Estimated amount of capital ining to be d and not provided for 40.70 624.66
Less: capital advance (refer note 7) {10.97) (59.94)
29.73 564,72

C  Leases
Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee

a) ‘The company has taken land on lease of 99 years. There are no restrictions placed upon the Company by entering into these leases and there are no subleases.

| {iy The Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the dard to all lease cont isting on April 1, 2020 using the modified retrospective method. Accordingly,
" the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate as on the date of transition and
has measured right of use asset at an amount equal to lease liability adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised.

On transition, the adoption of the standard resulted in recognition of Rs 214.69 lakhs as Right of Use' asset in respet of land and Rs Nil Lease lisbility as there were no non
cancellable period in the leases and were categorised under short term leases.

(i) The following is the v of practical expedients elected on initial application:
() Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic envirenment with a similar end date
{b) Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application
(c) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset atthe date of initial application
(d) Applied the practical expedient by not i hether a contract is, or contains, u lease at the date of initial application, Instead applied the standards only to
contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17,
(€} Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to extend or terminate the lease

Following is varrying value of right of use assets recognised on date of transition and the movements thereof during the year:

(Rs in lakhs)

Particulars Right of Use Asset
Leasehold Land

Balance as at March 31, 2021 21247
Depreciation of Right of use assets (refer note 20) 222
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2 lO.Ei__l
Depreciation of Right of use assets (refer note 20) 222
Balance as at March 31, 2023 208.03

(i¥)  The following is the carrying value of lease liability on the date of transition and movement thereof during the year :

| (Rs in lakhs)
Particulars

Balance as at March 31, 2022 E
Balance as at March 31, 2023 -

(v)  The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations refated to lease liabilities
as and when they fall due.

{vi)  Rental expense recorded for short-term lzases was Rs 17.02 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Rs 28,64 lakhs), (Refer note 22)
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As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
D Contingent Liabilities
Disputed tax liabilities in respect of pending cases {(March 31, 2022: Rs 14.88)} {refer note 145.81 14.88
{b) below}
145.81 14.88

a) There is no Claims / suits filed against the Company however the suits are filed by Deputy Director, Industrial Safety and Health, Cuddalore against the Director of the
Company in capacity of an occupier of the factory on account of charges for violation of Tamil Nadu Factories Act, 1948 and Tamil Nadu Factory Rules, 1950.

The Company has disclaimed the liability and defending the action. The Company has been advised by its legal counsel that its position is likely to be upheld in the litigation
process and accordingly no provision for any liability has been made in the financial statements.

b) Against disputed tax Habilities Assistant Commissioner has passed Order No: 02/2023 — GST dated 18.01.2023 Division Cuddalore, Trichy for demand amounting to Rs
14.38 Lacs plus Interest w's 50(3) of CGST Act 2017 plus Penalty of Rs. 1.43 Lacs are on account of claim ineligible tax credit in respect of Capital goods claimed through
GST Tran | in respect of which company.

The company has filed Appeal with Joint Commiissioner Appeals on 03.03.2023 against the same on deposit of 10% of disputed GST amount. The Company 15 contesting
the d 15 and the g including its tax advisors, believe that its position will likely t be upheld in the appellate process and accordingly no provision has been

il for the tax d 1 raised. The g believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse effect

accrued in the fi
on the company's financial position and results of operations.

¢) As per Clause no. 10(xviii) of the EC letter F. No, IA-J-11011/207/2018-IA IKI) dated 28th March 2019 issued by MoEF & CC, the Company is committed for allocation of
funds for the Corporate Environment Responsibility (CER) which shall be 5% of the total project cost. The total project cost that has been approved under the EC letter is
Rs. 30.6 Cr. and accordingly the CER spend will be Rs. 1.53 Cr. out of which the Company has spent Rs. 28.69 Lakhs as on 31.03.2023.

) There was accident of Comapny's car while its Production Manager, Mr. G Mangaraju alongiwth his family members, Rama Gandiboina (wife) & Yashasvi Gandiboina
(daugher) was travelling on personal visit towards Vellore Porkovi. The car was driven by Company's Driver Mr. N. Sivabalan, as a resul of accidentt, passengers suffered
multiple injuries, Cases were filed against the Managing Director, TNSETC, Chennai, Company and Insumce Company by the passengers Yashasvi Gandiboina and Rama
Gandiboina for compensation due w/s 166(1) of the Motor Vehicles Act, 1988,

Total claimed liability in above cases is Rs, 1,30 Lacs, The Company has filed its appearance in respective courts, The matters are put up for appearance on the respective
next dates given above and are being contested by the Company.

Further, on the above accident matter the Driver of Vehicle Mr. N, Sivabalan filed application w's 10(1) of the Workmen Comy ion Act for p
Company and Inssurance Company.

ion againt the

24 OTHER NOTES DN ACCOUNTS

1

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits" are given below :

Defined Contribution Plan
The Company makes coniributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident fund (PF) and Employee state
insurance (ESI) which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to statement

of profit and loss as they accrue.
The Company has recognised the following amount as an expense and included in the Note 19 under "Contribution to provident and other funds":

Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Emplover's Contribution towards Provident fund (PF) 25.07 22.91
Emplover's Contribution towards Employee state insurance (ESI) 5.20 4,89
_30.27 27.80

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on
departure at |5 days of last drawn salary for cach completed year of service. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the project unit credit
method, which recognises cach period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures cach unit separately to build up the final obligation,

The obligation is unfunded.
The following tables ies the p of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance
sheet for the eratuitv plans:-
For the vear ended For the vear ended
__March 3. 2023 March 31, 2022
a)  Net defined benefit exy (Recognised in the of profit and loss for the year )
Current Servive Cost 9.16 9.83
Net Interest Cost 1.63 0.97
Net defined benefil expense debited to statement of profit and loss 10,79 11,81
b} Remeasurement {gain)/ loss r ised in other hensive i
Actuanial changes arising from ct in d hi i - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (0.98) (1.51)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments (5.70) {0.47)
(6.68) (1.99

Recognised in other comprehensive income
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)

dy

€l

)

h)

m)

For the vear ended For the vear ended
R iliation of opening and closing bal of Defined Benefit obligation
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the vear 23.15 14.42
Interest cost 1.67 0.97
Current servive cost 9.16 9.83
Benefit paid - (0.09)
Remeasurement of (Gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial changes arising from ch in fi ial pti (0.98) (1.51)
Actuarial ch arising from ch in experience adjustments (5.70) (0.47)
Defined Benefit obligation as at year end 27.30 23,15
Current 0.87 0.83
Non-current 2643 2232
Reconciliation of ing and closing bal of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 0.00 0.00
Investment Income 0.03 0.00
Emplover contribution 5.00 000
Benefits Paid 0.00 000
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net intérest expense =0.00 0.00
Fair value of plan assets at year end 5.03 0.00
Net defined henefit accet/ (Tiabilitv) reenonized in the halance sheet
Fair vitlue of nlan assets 5.03 L
Present value of defined benefit oblivation (27.30) (23.15)
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet- (Liability) (22.26) (23,15)
Principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation
Mortality Table 100% of TALM 100% of TALM
2012-14 2012-14

Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
Discount rate (per annum) T.45% 7.20%
Future Salary increase (per annum) B.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate Upto 30 - 10% Upto 30 - 10%

Above 30 - 5% Above 30 - 5%
Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is us below:
Increase | (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the year
Discount Rate
Increase by 1% (3.46) (2.90)
Decrease by 1% 4.26 3.58
Salary Increase
Increase by 1% 4,19 351
Decrease by 1% (3.47) (2.91)
Attrition Rate
Increase by 50% (1.68) (L33
Decrease by 50% 2.06 232
Mortality Rate (0,00} (0.00)
Increase by 10% 0.00 oo
Decrease by 10%
The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting pericd) 0.87 0.83
Between 2 and 5 years 6.44 5.07
Between 6 and 10 years 9.31 8.72
Beyond 10 vears 86.57 68.65
Total expected payments 103,19 83.28
The average duration of the defined benefit plan oblig at the end of the reporting period is 15 years (March 31, 2022: 14 years)
The plan assets are maintained with Life 1 Corp ion (LIC) of India,
The estimates of rate of escalation in salary idered in ial valuation are after taking into aceount inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including

supply and demand in the ¢mployment market. The above information is as certified by the Actuary.

Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit vbligation as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions oceurring at the end of the reporting period.
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2  Segment Reporting

As per Ind AS-108, "Operating Segment” ( specified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015
(as amended from time to time) and other relevant provision of the Act ) the Company’s chief operating decision maker (‘CODM’) has identified that the Company's business
activity falls within & single operating segment which is the production of agrochemical products and other related products and hence op in a single busi based
on the nature of the products, the nsk and returns, organisation structure and the internal financial reporting systems, Therefore, there is no reportable segment for the C‘umpany as
per the reauirement of Ind AS-108 “Overating Seements’,

Geographical Information

Geographical Non-current assets

The “Geographical Segments” comprises of d ic seg which includes sales to located in India and the gment includes sales to located
outside India.
The following is the distribution of Company's revenue by g phical market, regardless of where the goods were produced.
ri Reven
For the vear ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2023
Revenue- within Indiz 6,526.96 5.468.73
Revenue- putside India - -
6.526.96 546873
— Geographical Segment Current assets
For the year ended For the year ended
Muarch 31, 2023
Within India 1.113.08 247532
Outside India = 5
1.113.08 247532

For the vear ended For the vear ended
3 March 31,2022
Within Indis 4,259.12 342203
Outside India z z
4,259,12 342203

Note:- Non Current assets for this purpose excludes deferred tax assets

Revenue from Major Customers:

Revenue from customers with more than 109 of total revenue (ie. from the holding company}); For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 202, March 31,2
Within India 6,496.89 5.129.75
Outside India = n
649659 SI2975
Related party transactions

The related parties as per the terms of Ind AS-24,"Related Party Disclosures”, ( under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (as amended from time to time), as disclosed below:-

A) Names of related parties and description of relationship :

() Holding Company
Parijat Industries (Indiz) Private Limited, Holding Company

B) Names of related parties with whom transactions have taken nlace during the vear :

(iy Fellow Subsidiary
Leeds Life Sciences Private Limited

(ii) Kev Manuement Persnlme.l
Mr, Sentk R abakaran, M ing Director
Mr. Alwar Paranitharan, Director
Mr: Sheikmohideen Sherfuddeen, Director
Mr. Raj Deep Bhatia, Director
Mr. Anil Kumar Sachdeva, Director
Mr. Keshay Anand, Director
Mr, Bharat Anand, Director
Mr. Savmit Grover, Director
Ms. Apoorva Choubey, Company Secretary

(iiiy Enterprises over which Directors & Key Managerial Personnel have significance influence:
Prateesh Engineering Enterprises
S,R.5. Cranes and Equipments Services
Grace Gasés & Company
Pondy Grace Gases & Company
Anand Foundation
M/s 1] Industrial HR Services & Consultancy

(iv) Relatives of Key Management Personnel/Director
Mr. R. Jaceob Raja
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(C1 ) Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered lnto with related partics for the relevant financial year:

L Relative of Key Management Enterprise in which Director have significant
¥ ;
Hulding Company ellow Subsidiary Key Management Personnel Do e Total
S.No. Muture of transactions =T
For the s For the For the For the Fo the For the Forthe For the Foe the For the For the
year ended 31-03-23 5 -2 year ended 31-83-23 year etded 31-05-22 yeur ended 31-03-23 yeur eided 31-05-22 | yuar ended 31-03-23 year ended 31-03-22 year ended 31-83-23 year ended 3 1-03-22 year ended 31-03-13 | year ended 31-03-22
1 |Purg of products
Pariias indusicies (lodis) Provate Limited __ 639,10 131398 B - B = - A39.10 1313,
P'radissh Engincering ) i -] - | B ] 3 ? ) T5.21
SRS Cranes and Servicea - - - % - B 715 231 241
Grecr Gases & Compagy - - ) -] 2 2 4, 4.79] 4,
Pondy Grace Gases & Comgany. = = = =] =] - 0 021 021
Lewds Life Sciences Private Limited = =] [} 358 = B = - - 1,
2| Purchase of property, plant sod cuui - H
Paiiat Industies (lndia) Prvate Limited 2214 026 =] =] 2 <] ] = B 27 141 [
3{Sale of roducts - E |
Paciiar ndy {inglia) Pricate Limited 4,47, - = = ¥ = 4,472, 4577, ﬁl
4| Sale of progerty. plaot and 1 B 2|
Pariiat Industcics (lodia) Private Linited -, _198.66] . E - : F 3 ;
Bank balagess other than 981 above = | -] - -} E - R | |
Loels Life Sciences Private Limited = - = =] = =) = - B B -
5 d Losn B =
Paciiat o) (lndia) Private Limited L B = = = - = E _|m‘|_&l
6L 1 Loan taken | ] B |
Pasiial Industcies (odia) Private Limied . i 100,00] = z ] - | 3 7 A 1o0.00]
7| Lnterest paid an d loan 4 .
Parijat Industries (India) Private Limitzd - = - - - - - - - E J
] - i
Mr. Senth T buorab -] - - - 19.07 | A ! 19,07 3
Mo G ¥ i -] B - -] E
Mr Alwar - A - - o - 19 26.60]
9 = -]
Paciat lad {lndia) Private Liited =] .86 - =) - B = z - i 6,56]
Bgeds Lifie Scienoes Private Limiled B = - 0.67 - - - = ] -] [}
Literest Received on Lodn =) -
Pagiial Industries {lndia) Privase Limited 4 43011 B | - | | | 4301
Lpeds Life Scwences Private Limiled - | | -] 5] -] -] 4 E - .
11 [ Discount Given =) =
Paciint Industcies (ndis} Provate Limited - - - - =] - -] = =) = 3
12| Revenue from lob work = =
Pariiat Indussries (lodia) Private Liited LB48.71 2 A - = - = B 184871
3 |
13| CSR Expenses - 3
Auand Foundati -l -] -] -] | =] - L6 = 1 -|
14 2 Fee -l
iy Shelkmabis T g 7] 3 T = ] m
Mr, Raj Deep Bhatia, Dircetor - = i # i ] z 1,
Mr. Anil Kumar Sachdeva, Director =] - = -] A, = - -
M. keshav Anand, Direclos o ] il | 012 3| ] <) 0,121
. Sharat Anand, Diroctor = al A o [} ] ol
e Sayit Grover, Dirgctor & o o 4 il §:
15 |Licence Purchase o ]
Parijat Industries {India) Privite Limited 42, a -l - it - =] = 2| %
16] Licence Sale 1 B E
Paijitt Industries {lndia) Private Limited L u! R E -] - 4 = | |
17 |Research and development and gther Incame | o i
Pariy e (ladin) Private Limited n.ul | B | | B = 23 ]
¥ ilisation ncome | 2 5
Parijat Industrics (india) Private Limited m&l_ F -] ] i = " X 175, mi 2
19[Salary and wages | = :
Wir B Iaccob Raji (Relatives of Key M Personal E| F A 3 i & L1601 2 L6} =
1 - L ES ] | | ] dh Il | 1 B -
| o = | = B = -l 19481 A | 19.48] R
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(C2) Outstanding balances at the year end
$.No. Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary Key Management Relative of Key Management Enterpr.ise.in which Director have Total
Cebas A Personnel Personnel significant influence
i As at As at As at As at As at As at As at Asat As at Asat As at
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 | March31,2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31,2023 M
1| Trade Payable
§.R.S. Cranes and Equipments Services - - - - - - 0.04 0.45 0.04
Grace Gases & Company - - - - - - 1.17 0.65 1.17
Pondy Grace Gases & Company - - - - - - 0.08 0.09 0.08
Prateesh Engineering Enterprises - - - - - - .62 18.37 1.6
M/s JJ Inclustrial HR Services & Consultancy 4.06 - 4.06
Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited 162.35 919.40 - - - - - - 16235
Leeds Life Sciences Private Limited - 445.09 764.24 - - - - 445.09
2|Trade Receivable
Parijal Industries (India) Private Limited 243.47 164.29 - - - - - 24347
Leeds Life Sciences Private Limiled - - 0.61 - - - - - 0.61
3|Unsecured Loan
Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited 385.00 385.00 - - - - - - 385.00
4|Remuneration
Mr. Senthurpandian Rameshprabakaran - - - - 0.25 - - - -
Mr. Alwar Paranitharan - - - - 2.10 - - - -
‘ 5|Interest Payable on unsecured loan
Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited 19.01 3871 - - - - - - 19.01

,«Q/ |
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Carrving Value Fair Value
As al As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial instruments by category
Financial assets at fair value through amortized cost
Trade receivables 24431 166.89 24431 166.89
Cash and cash equivalents 3846 161,39 38.46 161.39
Bank balances other than abuve 105.81 391.23 105.81 39123
Loans (current and non-current) - = - -
Other financial assets (current and non-current) 412,94 57.89 412.94 S7.89
77740 B01.52 177.40
Financial liabilities at fair value through amortized cost
Borrowing {current and non-current) 71011 1.000.06 T70.11 L000.06
Trade payables 1,738.43 2.561.54 1,738.43 2.,561.54
Other financial liabilitics 18.91 90,08 18.9] 90.08
2.527.45 3.651.68 252745 3650168

The management assessed that the fair value of cash und cash equivalents, other bank balunves, trade receivables, other current finuncial assets, trade payables, current borrowings and other current liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

ged in a current tra ion between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1} The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. These unobservable inputs are

L by g tand 2 regularly a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.

2)  Long-term receivables/payables are evaluated by the C based on such as interest rates, risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the counterparty and the risk characteristics of the financed
project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

3)  The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 3 of the tair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at balance sheet date, are us shown
below:
Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in sctive markets is based on quoted (unadjusted) market prices at the end of the reporting period for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specitic esti If all signifi inputs required to fair value an instrument are ubservable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity ities, conting ion and
indemnification asset included in level.

Carrying Value Fair Value
— March 31,2023 Level 1 Level2 Level3
Assets carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Trade receivables 244,31 - - 244.31
3846 - - 4o

Cash and ¢ash equivalents

Bank balances other than above 105.81 - - 105.81
Loans (current and non-current) - - - -
Other financial assets (current and non-current) 412,94 - - A412.94
Liabilities carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Borrowing, (current and non-current) 770.11 - - 770.11
Trade payables 1.738.43 - - 1.738.43
Other financial liabilitics 18.91 = = 18.91
2 — Carrving Value Fair Value

— March 3}, 2022 Level i Level 2 Level3d
Assets carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Trade receivables 166.89 - - 166.89
Cash and cash equivalents 161.39 = - 161.39
Bank balances other than above 391.23 - - 391.23
Loans (current and non-current) - = - =
Other financial assets (current and non-current) 57.89 - - 57.89
Liabilities carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Borrowing (current and non-current) 100006 - - 1.000.06
Trade payables 2.561.54 - - 2.561.54
Other financial linbilities 90,08 = = Q0.08

e
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26 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial lisbili nprise Joans and ings, trade and other payables. The main purposc of these financial liabilities is lo finance the Company's operations, The Company's principal
financial asscts include loans, trade snd othe receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are derived dirctly from its operations.

The Company's financial rigk is an infegral part of how to plan and execute its business strategics. The Company is exposed to market rigk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The senior professionals working o manage the financial risks and he appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company are sccountuble (o the Board of
Direclors and Audit Commillee. This process provides assurance to Company's senior management mqmcwmysmm;mm ivities are d by appropriate policics and procedurcs and that
financial risk are i 1 and managed in with Company policies and Company risk objective. In the event of crisis caused due to external factors such as causad by recent pandemic "Covid-19"
the Assesses the bility of its assets, taturity of ita liabilities to factor it in cash flow forecast to ensure there is enough liquidity in these situstions through internal and external source of funds.

The Board of Direclors reviews and agrees polivies for managing cach of these rigks which are sutnmanized s below:

{a) Market Risk

Market risk s the risk ihat the fair value of fiture eash flows of 8 financial instrument will fluctuate becruse of changes in murkel prices. Market prices comprises three types of risk: currency rte risk, inferest rate risk
and other price risks, such as equity price risk il commedity price tisk. Financial instruments aficted by market risks inchude Joans and borrowings, deposils. and foreign currency receivables and payables. The
sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position s at the date of finuncial statements. The analysis exciude the impact of movements in market vanbles on: the crrying values of gratuity and other
past-reti igations; provisions; amd the financial assets and lishilities. The analysis for the contingent liability is provided In pote 23. The sensitivity of the elevant Profit and Loss item is the effect of the
assumed changes in the respective market nsks. This is based on the financial assets and financiul lisbilities held as ot the date of financial statements,

{iy Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign curtericy risk is the risk that the fir vafue or fisture cash flows of an exposure or a financial instrement will Muctuate breause of chonges in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises from fiture
ial ons and ised in agsets and linbilit i I in foreign currency that is not Company's functional cummency. (Le. INR). The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in foreign currency)

Fuoreign currency risk sensitivity

The following tebles ds the sensitivity o 8 possible change in USD and other exchange fates, with all other variables held constant. The impact an the Company profit before tax and equity
s due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities, The details of forward cumency forward contracts outstanding and foreign currency exposure us at year end along with the sensitivity analysis
of 1% are as under:
Gain/ (loss)
The i foreign is as follows: Impact on pr t
Nature Currency As on March 31, 2023 As on March 31, 2023 1% inereuse 1% decrease
{Amaunt in USD) (Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Forward contract - Buy
in respect of trade payable UsD z.g{ - 217.31 2.17) 217
avables
| Trugde Pavable USD 9951 - B17.47 (81T BT
The vear-end forcizn is wy follows: :
Nature Currency As un March 31,2022 As en March 31, 2022 1% Increase 1%e decrease
(Amount in LSDY rAmount in Re lakhs)
FPavables
Trade Pavable UsD T8 | - 553.631 (5.34) 5.54
Noter

Figures in bracket represents loss.

1) Interest Rute Risk
Interest rate is the risk thiat the Gair value o faunc cash fows of a financial instrument will fuctusle beause of changes in markel interest ates. The Compuny’s ciposure to the risk of changes in markel interest

rotes relates primsily to the Company's borrowings at floating interest res. The Company's borrowings outstanding afso eomprise of fixed rule loan (lerm loan taken by the company) and sccordingly is
exposed fo risk of fluctuation in market inferest rate,

Interest rate Sensitivity of Borrowines

With ull other variables held constant, the following table d the sensitivity to a bly possible change in interest rutes on floating rte portion of loans und borrowings:
As st March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Increass/ decreusy Impact on profit Increase! decrease Impact on profit
In basis points before tax in basis points before fax
((luss)igain) ({lons)gain)
Borrowings (Rs.) +50 13.85) +50 15,000
<50 3485 =50 5.00

fiti) Commodity Price Risk
The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain ities. lis op g require the ongoing manuficturing and trading of sgrochemical products and therefore require a conlinuows supply
of technical chemicals, solvents, crmlsifiers, packing material etc,, being the major input used in the manufacturing and trading. Due to Covid-19 and i ol i 1 i the prices of the
technical chemicals used #s input witnessed volatility in the markets and also might lead to 2 sibuation of increase in lead time fo procure the goods. The Company has entered into various purchuse contracts for
{hese matcrial for which there is an active market. The Compitny’s manigement has developed and enscted o risk Hiregy ity price risk and its mitigation through ils procunsment
and production strategy, The Company partly mitigated the risk of prive volatility by entering info the coniract for the purchase of these material based on average price.
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(b} Credit Risk
Crealit Risk is the rigk that the counter party will nol meet ils obligation under 8 finuncial instrument or cugtomer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credil risk prineipally from ity operating
iviti imarily trade ibles) and also from its financing activities, including deposits with bunks, foreign exchange transsctions and olber fnancial instruments.

N Trade Receivables
Customer crodit rick is managed by each receivable depariment subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk (including crodit spproval
establishing credit limits and continuausly monitoring the credi i of to which company grants credit torm in normal course of business), Credit quality ef u customer is assessed by the
Compnny on various paramelers by its receivable doy (6] ing customer receivalbles ere regularly moni and any ghip 10 major are generully covered by letters of credit or other
Forms of credit insurance obtained from reputable banks and other financial institutions to secure the risk of defivult by the customiers. Moreover, given the diverse muture of the Company’s businesses trade
-receivables nre spread over s mumber of wilh no signifi ion of crodit rigk.
An impainment unalysis is performed al cach reporting date on trade recivables by lifetite expected credit loss method based on provision matrix. The provizion mtes are bused on days past ue for grouping of
various customers based on thelr segment type. The maxinmm exposure (o credit risk at the reporting date i the camying value of coch class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security,
The letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance are considered integral pant of trade ivables and idd in the calculation of | i The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with
respest W trade receivables as low, as its cusiomers are located in several jurisdictions and industrics and operute in fargely independent markets,

(i) Financial instruments and cash deposits ) .
Company holds bank balances with reputed and croditworthy banking institttion within the app limit of cach bank. None of the Compuny’s cash equivalents, inéluding deposits with banks, ace
past due or impaired. Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury de in lance with the Company’s policy. lnvestments of surplus funds if
any are made in bank deposits. The limils are set fo minimize the concentration of risks and therefore miligate financial loss through counterparty’s potential filure to make payments.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the halance sheet st March 31, 2022 is the carrying amounts. The Company’s maxiomum exposure relating to financial assels is noted in
liguidity table below. Trade Recervables and other financinl assets are writen off when there iy ne reasonable expectation of recovery, such as deblor fuiling to engage in the repuyment plan with the Company.

Ag at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets for which allowance Is measured using 12 months Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)
Cash and cash eauivalens 3546 161.39
Bank balances other than above 105.81 39123
Loans {current and non-current) - -
Unher financial assets (curment and non-curment) 412.94 5789
55721 610.51
Finuncial assets for which allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Luss Method (ECL)
Trade receivables 24431 16689
24431 166,89

" Ralances with banks is subiect to low uredil risks doe to eood crodit ratings assiuned to these banks

The ageing analysis of trade receivables hus been considered from the date the invoice falls due after considering the allownnce for expected credit loss is as below:
Particulars As at As at

24431 166.49

Neither past due nor impaired

0 1o | year due past due date
More than | vear past due date = =
Total Trade Receivables 24431 166,89
(e} Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined us the rigk that the Company will not be able 1o setthe or meet it obligations on time or at ble price. The Comy bjective is 1o at all times. maintain optimum levels of liquidity to

meet its cash and Liquidity requirements, The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys & robust cash management system. 1| maintaing adequale source of faancing through the use of working capital
and cash credit facility. Processes and policies related (o such risks are overseen by senior mansgement. Management monitors the Company's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the busis of expected cash

Rows

The table below summarises the muturity profile of the Company’s financial lisbilities based on
Lows than [ vear 1-5 vears Total
Borrowins 616,41 153.30 77010
Trnde payables 1,304.44 A435.66 1L 740.10
sl liahilitics 18.91 - 15,91
1.940,16 58496 | 252012
i Lss than | viar 1-5 vears Total
Bomowings 636.97 363.09 L000.06
Trade pavables 255637 517 2.561.54
228342 68,26 365168 |
Capital Management
For the purposes of the Comparry's capital munagemen, capital inchides equity capital, optionally convertible preference shares, securities premium and all other equity neserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital is to safiguand its ability to continue 45 going concern and 1o ensure that it maintains an cificient capital structure and maximizé sharcholder
vl The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in i littons and the requi of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the

Compary muy adjust the dividend payment o sharcholders or issue new shares, The Company is 5ol subject to any externally imposed capital requirements, No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023, Murch 31, 2022 excepl for budgcting for cash flow projections considering the impact of ongoing pandemic Covid-19. The Companys policy is
10 keep the gearing ratio to the minfmum.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is nel debt {interest bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents) divided by lotal capital plus net debi which is summarised a5 below:

As at As at
March 31,2023 ~ March3l 2022
Particulars
Bomowings [refer note 12041} 701 100006
Cash and cash cauivalents {refer note 9(B)) (3%.46] {161.39)
Net Debt T31.65 ¥38.67
Capital comvonents
Eauity share capital {refer note [ 1IA)} A.607.48 3.336.05
Instruments entirely equitv in nature {refer note 11{A)} - 400.00
Uther eauity frefer note 1 10R)} {1,347.19) (1.096.95)
Total Capital 326029 2.63%.10
3.991.94 3ATITT

Capitul and net debt
Gearing ratio {Net Debt/ Capital and Net Debit) 18.33% 24.12%
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28 Earnines per share (EPS)

a)

by

Basle Earnings per share

Mumerstor for eaminas per share

Profil afler taxation

Net profit for calculation of basic EPFS

Denominator for carhings per share

*Weighted number of eguity sharcs putstanding during the year

Earnings per share-Basic (one equity share of Re. 10 each)

*Earmings per share for previous year have een sdjusted for Bomus share issu in the Current Year refer Note

Dilisted Earnings per share

Numemtor for samines per share

Profil after taxation

Derigminator for camnings per share

Weighted rumber of eauity shares outstanding during the year
Effect of dilutivn:

Mo Cuniul Optionatl ibl shares (NCOUPS) shares {refer note below)

P
(4,000,000 NCOCPS issued on July 31, 2020 und Septembiz 16, 20200
Weighted average number of equity shares in caloulating diluted EPS

Earnings per share- Diluted {me eouity share of Re. 10 eachy*

{This space hat been intenationully left blank)

(Mos. )

Rs.

Far the year ended For the vear ended
{538 = 63TR7
10525 = 637.87
41,360,308 37.074.810
025 - L7
1525 - 631.57
41360308 37.074 810
- 4,000,000
41,360,308 41074810
25 - 1.55

* The immact of dilution being anti dilutive. hence we have disclosed the diluted eaming per share same as busic carming per share for the vear ended March 31 2023.
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29 Ratio Analysis and ifs elements

S.No Ratio Numerator Denominator 31/03/2023 | 31/03/2022 | % change Reason for variance
1 |Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.46 0.75| -37.97% Note 1
2 | Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.24 0.38| -37.67% Note 2

Earnings for debt service = | Debt service = Interest &
3 [Debt Service Coverage ratio | Net profit after taxes + Non-|Lease Payments + Principal 4.37 -2.71| 261.43% Note 3
I;}l&&hmﬂmm Repavments
: . . et Profits after taxes — Average Shareholder's
tur Ye - 059 799
4 |Return on Equity ratio Preference Dividend Bty 25.45% 172.05%| 114.79% Note 4
Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 6.91 3.09] 123.73% Note 5
Trade Receivable Turnover |Net credit sales = Gross :
Q,
6 Ratio L slay AL Average Trade Receivable 31.75 11.22| 182.92% Note 6
Net credit purchases =
de P. :
7 E:;: Byeble Tantouet Gross credit purchases - Average Trade Payables 1.61 1.49| 8.52% -
Ql-l.lﬁlﬂlﬁ.ﬁ_l:'zmm
T ; = Total sales - i ftal= t
g [Net Capital Turnover Ratio [Net sales = Total sales Working capltal_ Qtfr_fen 5.08 657 -22.70% Note 7
sales return assets — Current liabilities
g |JfNes Brukitegls Net Profit ot tes~ Tomlinles - 161%|  -11.66%| 113.82% Note 8
%E return
Return on Capital Employed apital Employed =
Earnings before interest and [Tangible Net Worth + Total
10 4% -11.37% 349
fieds Debt + Deferred Tax 3.34% 11.37%| 129.34% Note 9
L idhil;
11_[Return on Investment Interest (Finance Income) | Investment - - - Not Applicable

Reasons for variance:
Note 1: The decrease is ratio is primarily driven by (a) decrease in borrowings and trade payables from previous year balances and (b) also significant decrease in

closing inventory as on the date of current year balance sheet.

Note 2: The improvement in this ratio is primarily driven by significant increase in Equity share during the year through conversion of prefrence share, issue of
Bonus and right share duing the year, on account of additional capital infusion and profit during the year.

Note 3:. The improvement in the debt coverage ratio is mainly on account of repayment of the borrowing from the receipts from the equity shares

Note 4: An improvement in this ratio is primarily driven by the significant increase in Equity Share this year, on account of additional capital infusion and profit
during the year.

Note 5: Improvement in the ratio is on account of the decrease in inventory and increase in the the turnover as compare to the previous years.

Note 6: The movement in this ratio is primarily driven by the significant increase in revenue.

Note 7: The movement is on account of amounts received thorugh issue of equity share capital during the current year, which were deposited in our current bank
accounts, which has led to a negative impact on the Company’s working capital and hence a negative impact on the Capital Turnover Ratio as well.

Note 8: The movement is on account of, the company started making profit in current year whereas in previous year there were a significant loss.

Note 9: The movement in this ratio is primarily driven by the increase in Equity share capital as well as the increase in operational profit in this year.

30 Other Statutory Information
(i)  The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(ii)  The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off,
(iii)  The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,
(iv)  The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(v)  The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi)  The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in

writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the

tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

et
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31 Loss Due to Fire

On May 13 2021, a mild blast followed by some fire occured in the production block of manufacturing facility of the company located at C-10, SIPCOT,
Cuddalore, Tamil Nadu. In this incident certain machinery and equipment, inventory and other assets were damaged. Following is the detail of losses
incurred by the company and the amount of Insurance received by the company.

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Raw Material with GST - 2,932,271
Repair of property plant & equipments - 8,852,338
Other expenses - 898,195
Total Direct loss due to Fire - 12,682,804
Less: Amount of insurance claim received = 12,043,969
Net Loss Due to Fire - 638,835

32 Previous year figures have been re-grouped, re-arranged wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with the current year figures.

As per our report of even date
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